
PREBID QUERIES AND RESPONSES - HIGH PRIORITY SMS RFP
Sr. No. RFP Page No. RFP Clause No. Existing Clause Query/Suggestions Bank’s Response

1 3 13 Bank Guarantee: Rs. 10,00,00,000/- For an MSME unit, paying such a huge amount before service going live is difficult. Request you to keep 
it upto 1 crore.

PBG has been reduced to Rs.5 crore- Corrigendum will be 
released.

2 23 25-(vi) Bidder shall provide and implement patches/ upgrades/ updates for hardware/ software/ Operating 
System / Middleware etc as and when released by the Vendor/ Please clarify whrher the middleware will be deployed by the SMS vendor or by the Bank. This clause is related to infra/application installed at the 

Bidders’ locations.

3 24 25-(vii)

Bidder shall obtain a written permission from the Bank before applying any of the 
patches/ upgrades/ updates. Bidder has to support older versions of the hardware/ 

software/ Operating System /Middleware etc in case the Bank chooses not to 
upgrade to latest version.

Please clarify whether the middleware will be deployed by the SMS vendor or by the Bank. This clause is related to infra/application installed at the 
Bidders’ locations.

5 46 2

The Bidder (including its OEM, if any) must comply with the requirements contained in O.M. No. 
6/18/2019-PPD, dated 23.07.2020 order (Public Procurement No. 1), order (Public Procurement No. 2) 
dated 23.07.2020 and order (Public Procurement No. 3) dated 24.07.2020. Bidder should specifically 
certify in Appendix A in this regard and provide copy of registration certificate issued by competent 

authority wherever applicable.

Please clarify which certificate is being referred to here. This is related for the OEMs who are covered under the 
Govt.’s MII programme

4 50 Appendix B1 5. Whether Bidder’s IT environment is suitably protected from external threats by way of firewall, WAF, 
IDS/IPS, AD, AV, NAC, DLP etc. Please confirm who will bear the cost? Service Provider has to bear the cost

5 51 Appendix B1 15. Whether suitable security certification (ISO,PCI-DSS etc.) of the security posture at Bidders IT 
environment are in place.

As per our standing, PCI-DSS is for Payment Gateway vendors only.  Request you to remove the clause. 
Kindly share the list of all certifications which are mandatory for bidder to have. These are the examples of certification

6 57 Appendix-C--(b) Product 
Features (4) Delivery report of SMSs must come from the customers’ mobile handsets rather telecom towers Unlike GSM, In case of CDMA technology, Delivery reports comes directly from the towers as  service 

provider we don’t have control over Operator Infra , hence this clause should be deleted. No change in RFP

7 58 Appendix-C--(c) Check 
List (Compliances) (7)

It is agreed that the Bank reserves the right to negotiate the prices with the selected Bidder. It is also 
agreed that in the event of downward reduction in the international or national market prices of the Bulk 
SMS Services, the Bank reserves the right to negotiate price with the Bidder even before the expiry of 36 

months period.

There should be provision of escalating the price as well if there are any changes in Government 
charges/Operator/IUC, taxes, DLT related charges /GST..etc. In such cases we will provide the valid 

supporting documents. 
Termination clause is also there, if they want to invoke

8 60 Appendix-E 1-(iii)

Retry of all failed SMSs and the SMSs for which delivery acknowledgement is not received from the telecom 
operator in 30 seconds with different telecom operator. E.g. if initial submission of particular SMS is with 

Airtel and the SMS got failed or DLR is not received in 30 seconds, then retry should be with Vodafone-Idea 
(VI) or Tata, etc.

Is Additional cost will be given by the SBI to SMS vendor , for the reties which will be done from another 
telco. Please confirm No additional cost will be paid by the Bank.

9 61 Appendix-E 4-(a) Audit trail requirement Please elaborate Security related audit requirements

10 61 Appendix-E 4-(b) Audit logs reporting & analysis tool Please elaborate Security related audit requirements

11 70 D-Penalty for fall in 
success Rate Success Rate** of 97% and above is expected from Bidder in delivery of High Priority SMS category.

Here Success rate referred as total % of SMS delivered to Operator/handset, please confirm.  

Also, if delivery fails to a given mobile no due to genuine reason such as Mobile Switch off, End user 
operator problem, Messages capacity full, not in network coverage.etc then it should not be counted 
while calculating the SLA/Penalty and will provide the valid reason for such failure received from the 

telco operator 

No change in RFP clause

12 71 F Payment will only be made for the SMSs whose successful delivery have come from the customers mobile 
handsets. No payment is made for the SMSs whose delivery status have come from the telecom towers

Unlike GSM, In case of CDMA technology, Delivery reports comes directly from the towers as  service 
provider we don’t have control over Operator Infra , hence this clause should be deleted 

No change in RFP clause as the RFP is based on SMS 
delivery model

13 121 9.1-(d) full content of software builds and server configuration details for software deployment and 
management;.

As source code /Software which is proprietary of organization hence same is not possible to share , 
Please confirm 

Clarifications will be given to the bidders after discussing 
with ISD team

14 GENERAL QUERY

As per the recent DLT rule (TCCCPR guidelines) we will not receive the DLR (Delivery reports) of a SMS 
for Some of the messages category such as Promotional...etc , In such scenarios how the SLA & Penalty 

will be calculated, Please confirm 

Also, in future in case if we not receive the DLR (Delivery reports) of a SMS for The OTP and 
Transactional Categories (OTP, Service Implicit, Service Explicit), In such scenarios how the SLA & 

Penalty will be calculated, please confirm

THis RFP is only the High Priority SMSs. 
 
A separate RFP shall be published in future if telecom 
operator does not provide delivery report.

15 GENERAL QUERY Please share Details of existing Process &  hardware/ operating System /Software /application/DB/
Storage/Leased Line.etc deployed at Bank premises. 

Three tier architecture, patches should be n-1, robust 
system 

16 GENERAL QUERY

Also Bank or Vendor who is going to pay for In case of procurement of new hardware/ operating 
System /Software /application/DB/Storage/Leased Line any other software or hardware components 
required for Services ...etc or Bank is going to provide all the resources as per the demand from the 

Vendor.

Service Provider has to bear the cost

17 GENERAL QUERY

Please elaborate the middleware will be deployed by the SMS vendor or by the Bank and In case if same 
will be deployed by the SMS vendor in Bank premises then who will provide the hardware and software 

components required for the mentioned services  and who will bear the cost for the same please 
confirm 

Service Provider has to bear the cost

18 GENERAL QUERY

Please confirm providing  HTTPS based API will be enough for sending SMS and Receiving DLR or do we 
need to deploy a solution to bank premises please confirm ,In case if same will be deployed by the SMS 
vendor in Bank premises then who will provide the hardware and software components..etc required 

for the mentioned services  and who will bear the cost for the same please confirm 

Service Provider has to bear the cost

19 GENERAL QUERY Planned downtimes should not be consider while calculating the UPTIME of the system , please confirm Clarifications will be given to the bidders after discussing 
with IT-Risk team

20 GENERAL QUERY Who will bear the cost for Security releted activity requested by the bank mentioned in the RFP also in 
the future as an when required by the bank, Please confirm Service Provider has to bear the cost

1 54 Viii The Bidder should be able to allocate a minimum throughput 5000 SMS/sec to State Bank group. Overall volume is 75 Lakhs per day by May 2023, which converts to 260 SMS/Sec.  We wanted to 
understand 5000 SMS/Sec requirements , can you please eloborate.

5000 SMSs/sec is the peak TPS which generally comes 
during tatkal hours.

2 Various Various Middleware requirement Can you eloborate scope of middleware and interations use case , which are protocol or methods to be 
used for integration. Refer to the RFP clauses

3 53
Appendix C a(ii) Any specification on Receiev TPS Requirements Refer to the RFP clauses

4 56
Appendix C a(Xvi) Pls specify the Middleware details and Middle ware specifications for understanding

Bank’s Middleware has exposed https API for SMS 
submission and DLRs reception

5 57
Appendix C b(1) any plans to adapt other API's like REST or RAPID during the tenure REST API is presently in use

6 57
Appendix C b(7)

If possible pls share Forecast for next 3 years or provide last three growth patren of SMS's for 
understanding the requirement better Refer to the RFP clauses

7 57
Appendix C b(8) Pls provide details of the system that would require integration for delivering acknowledgement to SBI

Bank’s Middleware has exposed https API for SMS 
submission and DLRs reception

8 various
whats would be the tentative time of deployement Refer to the RFP clauses

9 various
Any TAT for response time from SBI on queries Please further specify your query

10 various
Any penalties on Delay in Delivery of Deployement. Yes, already mentioned in the RFP

11 various
Any penalties % Success/ Failure of SMS's Yes, already mentioned in the RFP

12 54 Viii The Bidder should be able to allocate a minimum throughput 5000 SMS/sec to State Bank group. Overall volume is 75 Lakhs per day by May 2023, which converts to 260 SMS/Sec.  We wanted to 
understand 5000 SMS/Sec requirements , can you please eloborate. Repeated question

13 Various Various Middleware requirement Can you eloborate scope of middleware and interations use case , which are protocol or methods to be 
used for integration. Repeated question

14 60 Help Desk 
Requirements

b) The expected time of response should be 5 minutes through 
automated ticket number and resolution should be average 60 

minutes per email or call communication. We need to follow standard or enterprse level SLAs No change in RFP clause

15 60 Help Desk 
Requirements

Bidder should have ability to generate MIS reports periodically 
(every day) as mentioned in Annexure E 2(b) and to be sent 

through email to designated email ids. Customer need to use MMX IT Portal for getting all type s of reports Reporting needs to be done through email also

16 61 Performance 
Requirements

i. Uptime requirement – 99.99% of complete SMS services 
ii. The Push SMSes will be for the following categories i. Standard SLA=99.5% Bank’s standard clause across all RFP

17 114 Penalties, Annexe E
E) Penalty for fall in success Rate: Success Rate** of 97% 1) This seems quite agressive. 

2) Exclusion clause should be added for problem external to Tata's control (Example) 
3) We should ensure to have a Force Majeur clause to protect our interest. 

OTP services are very critical, hence agressive SLA has 
been kept

18 47/142
5 Bidder should have experience of minimum 5 years in providing bulk sms services

Bidder should have experience of minimum 5 years in providing bulk sms services to Indian and 
International customers for varied use cases No change in RFP clause

19 47/142
6

Client references anc contact details (email/landline/mobile) of customers for whom the bidder has 
executed similar projects in India. (Start and End Date of the Projects to be mentioned) in the past (At 
least 3 client references are required)

Client references and contact details (email/landline/mobile) of customers for whom the bidder has 
executed similar or varied projects in India or globally. (Start and End Date of the Projects to be 
mentioned) in the past (At least 3 client references are required) No change in RFP clause

20 48/142
10 Tie up with min 03 domestic telecom operators (names)

Bidder should have Tie up with min 02 domestic telecom operators (names) before go live of services 
for SBI covered under the scope of this RFP, also please provide more information in case bidder is a 
Telecom Operator itself

For telecom operator, it should be POI with all the 
operators

21 53/142
vi the messages should be delivered to correct mobile number the messages should be attempted to be delivered to mobile number as shared by SBI Bank has also mentioned the same thing.

22 90/142
11 As per the scope of this Agreement sub-contracting is not permitted

Sub Contracting to be permitted If the Bidder and the sub- contracted party are part of the same 
umbrealla company/part of same group however compliance to all the terms and conditions and 
delivery of services are responsibility of the bidder No change in RFP clause

23 54 Viii The Bidder should be able to allocate a minimum throughput 5000 SMS/sec to State Bank group. Overall volume is 75 Lakhs per day by May 2023, which converts to 260 SMS/Sec.  We wanted to 
understand 5000 SMS/Sec requirements , can you please eloborate. Repeated question

24 Various Various Middleware requirement Can you eloborate scope of middleware and interations use case , which are protocol or methods to be 
used for integration. Repeated question

25 108
Annexure A

Security 
Requirements 

i. Service to be https with TLS enabled 
We store MSISDN for reporting in the EDRs for billing purposes in encrypted format. Is that not 

acceptable for SBI?
Billing can be done with the acknowledgement id or 
reference number 

26 108
Annexure A

Integration of the 
services 

i. The Bulk SMS Services should cover the facility like Push 
Would SBI would be willing to conduct a training session to brief the vendor on the expected integration 

with their middleware solution. It is a simple REST based API

27 110
Annexure A

Service Provider shall have the operational maintenance obligations (e.g., telephone 
support, problem resolution, on-site services) Is on site support mandatory or telephone/virtual support and resolution enough. Onsite support is not required

28 114
Annexure E Penalties for delay in implementation of solution and penalty for fall in success rate below 97%

Would SBI be willing to relook at the Penalties imposed for non implementation of solution within 1 
month and provide an extension for the same? No change in RFP clause

29 48
Appendix B

Bidder must be handling 
minimum 1 crore SMSs per day. 
(Except promotional SMSes). Can SBI accept Traffic including Promotional SMS traffic as well. No change in RFP clause

30 54
Appendix C

The bidder should provide the 
archives of all the messages 
sent to their gateway on the 

What is SBI excepting as a part of these archives since it Is discouraging the vendor from storing any 
data at our end. SMS delivery statistics based on the acknowledgement ids

31 54
Appendix C

If the Bank desires, 
connectivity with the bidder’s 
infrastructure will have to be Under which circumstances is SBI expecting the said connectivity through leased lines? In case the need arises in future.

32 58
Appendix C

All the prices, technical specifications and other terms and 
conditions of the offer including the commercial quote proposed 
by the Bidder shall be valid for a minimum period of 36 months. 

Please add to this clause to include that both Bidder and SBI reserve the renegotiate the commercials 
due to any shift in the market prices.

If any govt taxes e.g. GST increases then Bank is going to 
consider. This is already mentioned in the RFP

33 91 13. INSPECTION AND 
AUDIT

It is agreed by and between the parties that Service Provider shall be subject to 
annual audit by internal/external Auditors appointed by the Bank/ inspecting 
official from the Reserve Bank of India or any regulatory authority, covering 

Tata Communications conducts regular third party audits and VAPT and is willing to provide the reports 
for the same to SBI. Is that acceptable since we don’t allow customers to audit us. This is the standard ISD requirement

34
20

No alterations, amendments, omissions, additions, suspensions or variations of the work (hereinafter 
referred to as variation) under the contract shall be made by the successful Bidder except as directed in 
writing by Bank. The Bank shall have full powers, subject to the provision herein after contained, from Can the variations be done basis mutual agreemnt. No change in RFP clause

35
29 SUBCONTRACTING Can this clause be relaxed? No change in RFP clause

36
31; Section 20 of SLA LIMITATION OF LIABILITY Can the limitation of liability will  be extended for IP and Confidentiality? No change in RFP clause

37
33

DELAY IN SERVICE PROVIDER’S PERFORMANCE: 
Any delay in performing the obligation/ defect in performance by Service Provider may result in imposition 
of penalty, liquidated damages, invocation of Bank Guarantee and/or termination of Contract (as laid 

For default of Serivces our remedy is Service Credits. This requires a multiple way beneft to Customer 
as it may involve imposition of penalty, liquidated damages, invocation of Bank Guarantee and/or 
termination of Contract. No change in RFP clause

38
34 SERVICE PROVIDER’S OBLIGATIONS

Section 34 which involves permission for sub-contracting and makes Servce provider liable for Sub-
contractors activies is contradictory with Section 29. Kindly clarify one position only which will eable us 
to engage sb-contractors if validly permitted under the RFP No change in RFP clause

39
36.iii

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS AND OWNERSHIP: 
Service Provider shall, at its own expenses without any limitation, indemnify and keep fully and effectively 
indemnified the Bank against all costs, claims, damages, demands, expenses and liabilities whatsoever Can the said liability be limited to 12 months Service Charges collected by the Bidder? Please further specify your query

40
43 Termination for Convenience Can this be deleted? No change in RFP clause

41
12.3

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS AND OWNERSHIP: 
Service Provider shall, at its own expenses without any limitation, indemnify and keep fully and effectively 
indemnified the Bank against all costs, claims, damages, demands, expenses and liabilities whatsoever Can the said liability be limited to 12 months Service Charges collected by the Bidder? Please further specify your query

42
Section 20 of SLA LIMITATION OF LIABILITY Can the limitation of liability will  be extended for IP and Confidentiality? Repeated question

43 70/142 D Penalty for fall in success Rate
In certain cases sometime Handsets are switched off or out of coverage and may Inbox is filled, in those 
case delivery of messages may go down. How SBI is going to consider those messages under the success 
rate? RFP is the delivery based model

1 64 Indicative Price Bid Cost for domestic SMS (per one lakh SMSs in INR)

Cost for Domestic SMS needs to include with the DLT scrubbing charges Please confirm ?  DLT scrubbning 
charges needs to be add cause, as per the new TRAI regulations All Indian domestic commercial SMS 

(Transactional & Promotional) will be charged an additional DLT scrubbing charge of Rs. 0.025 per SMS 
Bidding to be done including all the charges

Billing model for SBI is on SMS Delivered basis but now after DLT implemetation as mentioned above 
operator is going to charge us on Submission basis so please clarify in this scnario how will take this 

forward.
RFP is the delivery based model

2 15 11. DEADLINE FOR 
SUBMISSION OF BIDS:

Bids must be submitted online on portal of e-Procurement agency by the date and time mentioned in the 
“Schedule of Events”. Is there any Physical submisison ? No need for physical bids- confirmed by IT-PR

3 48 Appendix-B : Bidder’s Eligibility Criteria
Bidder must be handling minimum 1 crore SMSs per day. (Except promotional SMSes). Copy of invoices of 

last 03 
months should be submitted.

Hope SBI will consider multiple customers Invoices in this regards. yes

1 Clause 10 (g) 
A copy of board resolution along with copy of power of attorney (POA wherever applicable) showing that the signatory 
has been duly authorized to sign the Bid document.

Please confirm if Board resolution along with Authority Letter on the letterhead of the Company will serve the 
purpose POA is must

2 15 Clause 11 (ii)
Wherever applicable, the Bidder shall submit the original EMD Bank Guarantee and Pre- Contract Integrity Pact 
together with their respective enclosures and seal it in an envelope and mark the envelope as “Technical Bid”. 

Kindly elaborate the term"wherever applicable". Do we need to submit Pre-Contract Integrity Pact in original or the 
scanned copy will suffice.

Physical copy of envelope should reach within the mentioned date 
and time

3 16 Clause 13(iv)
 Once Purchase Order or Letter of Intent is issued by the Bank, the said price will remain fixed for the entire Contract 
period and shall not be subjected to variation on any account, including exchange rate fluctuations and custom duty. A 
Bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation will be treated as non-responsive and will be rejected.   

Please confirm the position in case of change in SMS charges by Telecoms, including due to any change in telecom 
regulations or imposition of any new charges etc. No change in RFP clause

4 24 Clause 25 (ix)
Bidder shall provide legally valid Services. The detailed information on license count and type of license shall also be 
provided to the Bank. Kindly provide the list of licenses expected to be produced with the bid.

Many a times open licences are revoked by the licence company, 
hence bidder has to take care for the same.

5 25 Clauuse 31 (i)
The maximum aggregate liability of Service Provider, subject to clause 31 (iii), in respect of any claims, losses, costs or 
damages arising out of or in connection withthis RFP/Agreement shall not exceed the total Project Cost.                                                                          

The cap on maximum liability is on higher side and may be made limited to revenue during 6 months preceeding the 
event giving rise to indemnity No change in RFP clause

6 25 Clauuse 31 (iii)
The limitations set forth herein shall not apply with respect to:                                                                                                                 
(a) claims that are the subject of indemnification pursuant to infringement of third-party Intellectual Property Right; 
(b) damage(s) occasioned by the Gross Negligence or Willful Misconduct of Service Provider, 

(d) shall be applicable only when such guidelines were brought to the notice of Service Provider unless the actions of 
Service Provider resulting in such non-compliance is with the approval or authorisation of Bank No change in RFP clause

5 31 Clause 37
If Service Provider fails to deliver and perform any or all the Services within the stipulated time, schedule as specified 
in this RFP/Agreement, the Bank may, without prejudice to its other remedies under the RFP/Agreement, and unless 
otherwise extension of time is agreed upon without the application of liquidated damages, deduct from the Project Cost, 

Since the RFP relates to opex and the SLAs are already specified for the services, the liquidated damages shall not 
apply. You are requested to please specify the situation in which liquidated damages will apply For e.g., in case of breach of trust, etc.

7 40 Clause 47(iii)
If any major change is observed in Govt. TRAI rules, like dropping of interchange fee etc. (say upto 5% down), Bank 
should be benefitted with the change. For any increase, it is bank's discretion to pay or not to pay the difference.

If there is increase in price due to Govt or TRAI Rules or TCCCP Regulations then the cost for the same shall be 
borne by the Bank on as it is basis without any profit to Service Provider No change in RFP clause

8 64
Appendix-F Indicative 
Price Bid

RFP has no mention of  TRAI mandated DLT scrubbing Fee Charged by all Telco in India. The Scrubbing Fee shall 
be in submission basis. Request for the change in Commercal Annexure with separate line item for DLT/Scrubbing 
charge per SMS

RFP is the delivery based model

9 80
Clause 3.5 Bank Guarantee 
and Penalties (3.5.1)

Service Provider shall furnish performance security in the form of Bank Guarantee for an amount of Rs. 10,00,00,000/- 
valid for a period of 03 year(s) 03 month(s) from a Scheduled Commercial Bank other than State Bank of India in a 
format provided/ approved by the Bank.

Kindly reduce the PBG value to 3 month invoice value or 25 Lakhs
PBG has been reduced to Rs.5 crore- Corrigendum will be 
released.

1 53 Appendix - C vii.   The bidder should have a configurable retry mechanism to deliver the messages within the SLA.
Bank to share if any customised retry mechanism is required Already mentioned in the RFP

2 53 Appendix - C viii. The Bidder should be able to allocate a minimum throughput 5000 SMS/sec to State Bank group.
Please share bifurcation of Peak TPS in terms of Service Explicit, Implicit, Transactional, Promotional 

Please confirm if any international SMSs are to be sent? Please share the peak tps projection?
This RFP is only for the High Priority (OTP) SMSs and TPS 
for the same is already mentioned in the RFP

3 53 Appendix - C xii.     The bidder should provide the archives of all the messages sent to their gateway on the Bank’s SFTP 
location on the monthly basis. Does this require sms content as well, as it wil remain in encrypted format at Airtel end? Yes

4 53 Appendix - C 
xiii. If the Bank desires, connectivity with the bidder’s infrastructure will have to be provided through leased 
lines, at no extra cost to the Bank. The leased lines will have to be taken from at least two established 
service providers and line from each service provider should be capable of handling the entire load. Need clarity, if the deployment is on cloud or physcial h/w? And will it be on customer premises or Bidders premises?

If required, leased line would be between SBI and the 
service provider

5 53 Appendix - C b.       Bearer (GSM/CDMA)
Not available from N/W Telecos provide these information in the DLRs

6 53 Appendix - C c.       Operator
Not available from N/W Telecos provide these information in the DLRs

7 53 Appendix - C d.       Circle
Not available from N/W Telecos provide these information in the DLRs

8 53 Appendix - C e.       National
Domestic / International can be shown, but country name cant be shown Ok

9 53 Appendix - C i.        Date/time of SMS delivered to the end subscriber.
In case of International SMS, only delivery upto International Operator will be shared; not up to handset This RFP is only for the domestic SMSs.

10 53 Appendix - C i.        Total retry counts
N/W make multiple attempts for Temp Failure. Final Succ / Fail counts will be shared Such retry counts to be sent in the DLR API.

11 53 Appendix - C xvi. Delivery report should reach to Bank’s middleware in real time and timestamp of bidder’s server should 
in sync with Bank’s middleware’s server. Please confirm the architecture to follow to sych up timestamp b/w two independent system? It should be in sync with the Bank’s NTP server

12 54 SMS i.   Instant Messages / Schedule Messages, Retry Mechanism is maintained at N/W level. Bank to share if any customised retry mechanism is 
required at Airtel end. Already mentioned in the RFP

13 55 Parameters v.  Capability of allocating minimum 5000 SMS/Sec to Bank’s SMS traffic.
If 5K TPS is the minimum what is the max TPS required? 

Please share bifurcation of Peak TPS in terms of Service Explicit, Implicit, Transactional, Promotional 
5000 TPS should be configured at the service providers’ 
end

14 56 SMS Delivery Delivery report of SMSs must come from the customers’ mobile handsets rather telecom towers
DLR will not be shared for Promotional channel. Only count will be shared This RFP is only for the high priority SMSs.

15 57 Administration
Administration features like monitoring of total messages sent within a day/ week/ month, time delay (if any) 
in sending the messages, no of failed messages, invalid mobile numbers, Number of push, pull, messages 
sent. Is content also required on portal GUI, as it will remain in encrypted state at platform end

SMS content must not be stored at the service providers’ 
end.

16 58 Scalability The SMS software should be scalable to meet the requirements of the Bank for the next 3 years from the 
date of placing the Purchase Order.

Please confirm 5k TPS is inclusive of projection for 3 years? 

As traffic projection given, max of 300 TPS is required Yes

17 59 Integration Capability to integrate with any of the Bank’s applications at a future date. The Bulk SMS Services should 
have the capability to meet this requirement without any change in its functionality.

Is integration with any 3rd party partner is also required or all would be Bank's internall application? 

Bank to share the complete architecture for better understanding of integration required API document will be shared at the time of integration.

18 Appendix - C The Bulk SMS Services and related systems should conform to the requirements of the IT  Act 2000 and its 
subsequent amendments. Please share the details of IT Act 2000 Available in the public domain

19 Appendix - C 
Undertaking will be given in writing about readiness to carry out the Bulk SMS Services for delivery of 
outgoing messages to the Bank’s customers/ non-customers using own infrastructure/ software within 1 
Month from the date of receipt of purchase order at any office of the State Bank Group at any location. Please check, there will dependcy on Bank on multiple fronts for integration and pre-requisites API document will be shared at the time of integration.

20 Appendix - C 
It is agreed that the Bank reserves the right to negotiate the prices with the selected Bidder. It is also agreed 
that in the event of downward reduction in the international or national market prices of the Bulk SMS 
Services, the Bank reserves the right to negotiate price with the Bidder even before the expiry of 36 months Please confirm if any international delivery is required? If yes, to what all countries and what will be traffic projection?This RFP is only for the domestic SMSs.

21 Appendix - C The Bidder should be registered with TRAI and its name must appear in the registered list at TRAI’s website.
it is to be on DLT now not TRAI Need to be discussed in the Prebid meeting

22 Appendix - E Description of services ii.                             Submit delivery report received from customer mobile handset to the Bank.
For Promotional channel, only delivery counts will be shared and DLRs will not be shared This RFP is only for the high priority SMSs.

23 Appendix - E MIS report gen requirement
iii.                              Retry of all failed SMSs and the SMSs for which delivery acknowledgement is not 
received from the telecom operator in 30  seconds  with  different  telecom operator. 

Please share the delivery sla expectation in terms for Service Implicit, Explicit, Transactional & 
Promotional channel? This RFP is only for the high priority SMSs and SLA terms 

already mentioned in the RFP

24 Appendix - E a.              Mobile number/ MSISDN
Will not be shared for Promotional channel This RFP is only for the high priority SMSs.

25 Appendix - E c.              Bearer (GSM/CDMA)
Not available from N/W Telecos provide these information in the DLRs

26 Appendix - E d.       Operator
Not available from N/W Telecos provide these information in the DLRs

27 Appendix - E e.       Circle
Not available from N/W Telecos provide these information in the DLRs

28 Appendix - E f.        National
Domestic / International can be shown, but country name cant be shown This RFP is only for the domestic SMSs.

29 Appendix - E j.        Date/time of SMS delivered to the end subscriber.
In case of International SMS, only delivery upto International Operator will be shared; not up to handset This RFP is only for the domestic SMSs.

30 Appendix - E h.      Total DND Total retry counts
N/W make multiple attempts for Temp Failure. Final Succ / Fail counts will be shared Retry counts to be shared in the DLR API

31 Appendix - E May 21 Volume
Avg 62 lac / day Please share the traffic bifurcation in terms of Service Implict, Explicit, Transactional & Promotional This RFP is only for the high priority SMSs.

32 Appendix - E May 22 Volume
Avg 68 lac / day Please share the traffic bifurcation in terms of Service Implict, Explicit, Transactional & Promotional This RFP is only for the high priority SMSs.

33 Appendix - E May 23 Volume
Avg 75 lac / day Please share the traffic bifurcation in terms of Service Implict, Explicit, Transactional & Promotional This RFP is only for the high priority SMSs.

34 Appendix - E ** These volumes are only estimates, as per present projections and SBG does not guarantee these 
volumes of business or any minimum SMS volume at any point of time.

35 Appendix - E Scalability To be scalable as per Bank’s future requirement. Please share the complete details of future requirement subjectively
Future requirements already mentioned in the avg. volume. 
Also, it depends on the increase in the Bank’s customer 
base, increase in the digital products, etc.

36 Appendix - E Regulatory & 
Complaince

3.             SMS logs to be preserved for the entire contract period and has to be shared to the Bank on 
quarterly basis.

Bank can save the logs for 3 years at its own end, once shared quaterly / monthly via FTP.  Currently 
Logs are preserved for 1 year at Operator end as per TRAI guidelines. It can be shared on the monthly basis

37 Appendix - E

Security & Integration of 
services Req

iii.                          Supported versions of Middleware and associated software (preferably n-1) Plesae share the what versions of Bank Applications are being used currently, that are to be supported Bank is using the messaging platform of Solace and simple 
REST based API shall be used for the API integration

38 Appendix - E vi.                         SMS text and mobile numbers must not be stored at the bidder’s end. Will remain in encrypted format only. Although this point is contradictory to below point an MIS demand Customers’ information must not be stored at the service 
providers’ end

39 Appendix - E ii.  The bidder should be capable to integrate their solution with the Bank’s SMS middleware within 30 days 
from the date of Purchase Order.

Please confirm if the deployment is on cloud or physical h/w? 
On which premises; bidder or Banks? 
Any redundancy required, N+1 or Geo?

API integration is done between Bank and service provider.

40 Appendix - E e)             Physical and logical separation from other customers of the Vendor For physical separation, please confirm the deployment architecture. This clause is that infrastructure or application which are 
being used for SBI, must not be shared with other clients

41 Appendix - E Compliance & Bank's 
security policy a) Auto switching from Production to DR or vice versa with zero RTO and RPO

Deployment is required in Active - Active or Active Standby mode Active-Active mode

42 47 Appendix-B
The Bidder should be profitable organization on the basis of profit before tax (PBT) for at least 02 (two) out 
of last 03 (three) financial years mentioned in para 2 above.

Request you to amend the clause as below:

43 47 Bidder’s Eligibility 
Criteria

The Bidder should be profitable organization on the basis of profit after tax (PAT) for at least 02 (two) out 
of last 03 (three) financial years mentioned in para 2 above. No change in RFP clause

1 25 31.i
31. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: 

i. The maximum aggregate liability of Service Provider, subject to clause 31 (iii), in respect of any 
claims, losses, costs or damages arising out of or in connection with this RFP/Agreement shall not exceed Request to consider to change it from exceeding the total Project Cost to the amount paid by customer to Service Provider during the twelve month period ending on the date the event giving rise to the liability occurredNo change in RFP clause

2 28 34.vii
vii. Service Provider agrees that the Bank either itself or through its authorized representative shall 
have right to perform ethical hacking on public IPs and URLs of Service Provider, wherein the Bank has 

integrations. Kindly clarify what is meant by this
If need arises, Bank may do ethical hacking in the premises 
of service provider

3 30 35
i.        Subject to clause 36 (iv) and 36 (v) of this RFP, Service Provider shall, at its own expenses without 
any limitation, indemnify and keep fully and effectively indemnified the Bank against all costs, claims, 
damages, demands, expenses and liabilities whatsoever nature arising out of or in connection with all We suggest mutual indemnity considering the equal amount of risk involved in the event noncompliance No change in RFP clause

4
1.       TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:i.    The Bank, by written notice of not less than 90 (ninety) days, 
may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, for its convenience, provided same shall not be invoked 

by the Bank before completion of half of the total Contract period (including the notice period). We suggest mutual termination rights for both the parties. No change in RFP clause

5 40 47.ii
Prices quoted should be exclusive of all Central / State Government taxes/duties and levies but inclusive 

of all corporate taxes and Custom duty as also cost of incidental services such as transportation, road 
permits, insurance etc. The quoted prices and taxes/duties and statutory levies such as GST etc. should be since prices are exclusive, Bank shall accommodate the price increase in taxes too.

Clauses pertaining to increase/decrease in govt. taxes is 
already mentioned in the RFP

6 40 47.v
v. Prices payable to Service Provider as stated in the Contract shall be firm and not subject to 

adjustment during performance of the Contract, irrespective of reasons whatsoever, including exchange 
rate fluctuations, any upward revision in Custom duty. Request to consider to delete this clause as the pricing may vary upward/downwards on account of market dynamicsNo change in RFP clause

7 70 Appendix 1
Penalties the penalty amounts seem very high, can this be reduced No change in RFP clause

8 83 5.2.6
Service Provider warrants that the software deployed/ upgraded for providing Services as a part of this 
Agreement is free from malware, free from any obvious bugs, and free from any covert channels in the 
code (of the versions of the applications/software being deployed as well as any subsequent versions/ Since these are software based service, no warranty/guarantee can be provided, can this be deleted No change in RFP clause

9 89 8
If existing Service Provider is found to be in breach of this obligation, they shall be liable for paying a 

penalty of Rs. 25,00,000 (Rs. Twenty five lakh ) on demand to the Bank, which may be settled from the 
payment of invoices or bank guarantee for the contracted period. Transition & Knowledge Transfer plan is Request you to delete the additional penalty No change in RFP clause

10 92 13.1
Except for the audit done by Reserve Bank of India or any statutory/regulatory authority, the Bank shall 

provide reasonable notice not less than 7 (seven) days to Service Provider before such audit and same shall 
be conducted during normal business hours. kindly increase the notice period from 7 days to 30 days to enable us to arrange for the audit requirementsStandard clause- no change

11 95 15.1
15.1  Service Provider agrees that the Bank owns the entire right, title and interest to any inventions, 

designs, discoveries, writings and works of authorship, including all intellectual property rights, 
copyrights. Any work made under this Agreement shall be deemed to be ‘work made for hire’ under any Kindly delete as no IPR is created and/or transferred under the Services. Not applicable IPR is not applicable for this RFP

12 96 15.2
The Intellectual Property Rights on the software code, copyright and source code for various applications/ 

interfaces developed under this Agreement, and any other component/ framework/ middleware used/ 
developed as pre-built software assets to deliver the solution, shall belong to the Bank and the Bank shall IPR on the software code, source code is not transferred, hence this clause is not applicable. Kindly delete the clauseIPR is not applicable for this RFP

13 137 6
Fall Clause; The BIDDER undertakes that it has not supplied/is not supplying similar product/systems or 

subsystems at a price lower than that offered in the present Bid in respect of any other Ministry/
Department of the Government of India or PSU or any other Bank and if it is found at any stage that similar Request to consider to delete this clause as the pricing may vary upward/downwards on account of market dynamics revision in rates are not allowed to be passed on, then any downward rates offered to a third party should also not be expectedNo change in RFP clause

14 48 Appendix-B Bidder’s 
Eligibility Criteria 14. Bidder must be handling minimum 1 crore SMSs per day. (Except promotional SMSes).

Dear Sir, we understand that SBI wants to verify the platform capabilities. Is it okay if we provide the 
evidence through muliple customers cumulating to 1 cr. SMS per day 

Futher 

SMS counts from multiple clients are ok. 
 
No change in the RFP clause

15 48 Appendix-B Bidder’s 
Eligibility Criteria 16. Bidder should be capable of providing handset level delivery of SMSs, not merely the end telecom 

tower.Dear sir, since we are not the telecom service provider hence we are not responsible for the handset level delivery. However we have a capability to identify and report how many SMS's are delivered to mobile handset. Please confirm that this suffice your compliance requirement.You need to make such arrangement with teleco

16 70 Appendix–I 
Penalties High Priority SMSes are delivered upto 15 seconds : NIL The bidder request to revise the given condition from 15 seconds to 20 seconds. No change in RFP clause

17 64 Appendix-F
Appendix-F Indicative Commercial BidWe understands that the charges are inclusive of DLT Charges, is this understanding correct. If not then do you expect bidder to quote DLT charges seperately in the indicative commercial bid table ?Charges are inclusive of all except the GST


